
 

 

 

 

O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d  

L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  

w w w . l i n c o l n s h i r e i l . g o v  

 

 
 

 AGENDA 

 REGULAR ZONING BOARD MEETING 

Public Meeting Room, Village Hall 

Tuesday, November 14, 2017 

  7:00 p.m. 

 
Reasonable accommodations or auxiliary aids will be provided to enable persons with disabilities to 
effectively participate in any public meetings.  Please contact the Village Administrative Office 
(847.883.8600) 48 hours in advance if you need any special services or accommodations. 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
        
1.0 ROLL CALL 
             
 
2.0 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

2.1 Approval of the Minutes of the Joint Meeting of the Zoning Board and 
Architectural Review Board Held on Wednesday, April 19, 2017. 

 
2.2 Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Zoning Board Meeting Held on Tuesday, 

August 8, 2017. 
           
3.0 GENERAL BUSINESS 
 

3.1  A Public Hearing regarding a Temporary Special Use Permit for an Assembly 
Use on Daniel Wright Junior High School Property, 1370 Riverwoods Road 
(Ascension of Our Lord Greek Orthodox Church). 

 
 
4.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
5.0 NEW BUSINESS     
6.0 CITIZEN COMMENTS 

7.0 ADJOURNMENT 
   

The Zoning Board will not proceed past 10:30 p.m. unless a motion is made and approved by a 
majority of the Zoning Board members to extend the meeting one-half hour to 11:00 p.m. Any 
agenda items or other business that are not addressed within this time frame will be continued to 
the next regularly scheduled Zoning Board Meeting.  

 
 



 

 

 

 

O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d  

L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  

www .v i l lage. l incolns h ir e. i l .us  

V:\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\JointTraining\04-19-2017 Joint Meeting_UNAPPROVED MINUTES.doc 

UNAPPROVED  Minutes of the JOINT MEETING OF THE ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW 
BOARD and ZONING BOARD held on Wednesday, April 19, 2017, in 
the Public Meeting Room of the Village Hall, One Olde Half Day Road, 
Lincolnshire, IL. 

 
PRESENT: Architectural Review Board present: Members, Baskin, Gulatee and  

Kennerly.     Zoning Board present: Chairman Manion and Members 
Kalina, Van De Kerchove, Bichkoff and Udoni. 

 
ABSENT: Architectural Review Board Chairman Grover, Members Baranco, 

Jenson, Orzeski and Trustee Liaison Hancock. 
Zoning Board member Bryan Hersch and Trustee Liaison McDonough. 

       
ALSO PRESENT: Village Attorney Adam Simon, Assistant Village Manager/Community & 

Economic Development Director Adam Letendre and Economic 
Development Coordinator Tonya Zozulya. 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Chairman Manion called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  

 
1.0 Training 
 
 Village Attorney Adam Simon presented a Powerpoint presentation in regards to 

jurisdiction, procedures and public hearings including the powers of the Zoning Board 
and Architectural Review Board.  He further discussed the subjects of due process, 
public meetings, public hearings, decision making, the Open Meetings Act and ethics. 

 
2.0 Public Comment. (None) 
        
3.0 Adjourn. 
 There being no further business, Zoning Board Chairman Manion adjourned the meeting 

at  8:45 p.m. 
 



 

 

 

 

O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d  

L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  

w w w . l i n c o l n s h i r e i l . g o v  

V:\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ZONING BOARD\MINUTES\2017\2017_08_08 ZB Minutes UNAPPROVED.doc 

 
UNAPPROVED  Minutes of the REGULAR MEETING OF THE ZONING BOARD held on 

Tuesday, August 8, 2017 in the Public Meeting Room in the Village Hall, 
One Olde Half Day Road, Lincolnshire, IL. 

 
PRESENT: Chairman Manion, Members Kalina, Bickhoff. Udoni and Hersh. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Tonya Zozulya, Economic Development Coordinator, Adam Letendre, 

Assistant Village Manager/Director of Community & Economic 
Development.  

ABSENT:  Member Van de Kerckhove and Trustee Liaison McDonough. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Chairman Manion called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 
 
1.0 ROLL CALL 

The roll was called by Economic Development Coordinator Zozulya and Chairman 
Manion declared a quorum to be present. 
 

2.0 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
        

2.1 Approval of the Minutes for the Regularly Scheduled Zoning Board Meeting held 
on Tuesday, April 11, 2017.   

 
Member Kalina moved and Member Hersh seconded the motion to approve the 
minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Zoning Board. The motion passed unanimously by 
voice vote.  

 
3.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS 
 

3.1 Consideration of a Final Plat of Subdivision for a Proposed 15-lot Manors of            
Whytegate Single-Family Residential Subdivision, 1700 Riverwoods Road 
(Arthur J. Greene Construction). 

 
 Tonya Zozulya, Economic Development Coordinator, introduced Jeffrey 

Greene, President of Arthur J. Greene Construction Company.  Jeffrey 
Greene presented the proposed final plat of subdivision for a 15 lot development 
with lot sizes ranging from 20,000 to 30,000 square feet with approximately 3 
acres of open space and enhanced wet lands.  He added the only change from 
the preliminary plat presented in 2016 to the Zoning Board are some movement 
of lot lines and street name change, staff is aware of those changes. 

 
Chairman Manion inquired about the path to Whytegate Park that was part of 
the preliminary plat; Tim Golata of Arthur J. Greene Construction stated the 
plat does show an easement for a path along Riverwoods Road. 
 
Tonya Zozulya stated the Zoning Board approved the preliminary plat on August 
9, 2016 and the Village Board approved the preliminary plat on September 12, 
2016.  She added by Village Code, preliminary plats have a term of 12 months 
after which time it expires if the final plat is not approved.  Staff has made this 
known to the petitioner, the Village Engineer has approved the draft final plat and 



Zoning Board Meeting 08/08/2017 
Page 2  

 

added staff is recommending approval of the final plat of subdivision with the 
following stipulations/conditions: 

 The Village Engineer shall approve the code-required detailed 
storm water improvement and other engineering plans. 

 The developer shall complete step 4 of the code required 
technical phase regarding individual lot development and 
permitting. 

 
There being no further comments, Chairman Manion sought a motion from the 
Zoning Board. 

 
Member Kalina moved, seconded by Member Udoni, the Zoning Board 
recommends Village Board approval of the Final Plat of Subdivision for the 15-lot 
Manors of Whytegate Single-Family Residential Subdivision, with a subdivision 
code variation for a longer than permitted cul-de-sac length, as depicted in the 
petitioner’s presentation packet, dated August 4, 2017, date stamped received 
August 4, 2017, subject to the conditions presented in Staff’s memorandum and 
further subject to the following conditions: 

 The Village Engineer shall approve the code-required detailed 
storm water improvement and other engineering plans. 

 The developer shall complete step 4 of the code required 
technical phase regarding individual lot development and 
permitting. 
 

The motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 
 

 
4.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS (None) 

 
5.0 NEW BUSINESS (None) 
 
6.0 CITIZENS COMMENTS (None) 
 

Chairman Manion announced to the Zoning Board this will be his last meeting; adding he 
has enjoyed his time serving with his colleagues on this Board.  Member Kalina stated 
he will be missed and all members wished him the best. 
 

7.0 ADJOURNMENT  
  
There being no further business, Chairman Manion requested a motion for adjournment. 
Member Kalina moved, and Member Hersh seconded the motion to adjourn. The meeting 
adjourned at 7:13 p.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by Carol Lustig, Administrative Assistant, Community & Economic 
Development Department 



 

Agenda Item 

   3.1, ZB 

 

V:\Property_File\RIVWO-
RD\1370\PLANNING\Ourlordgreekorthodoxchurch_Specialuse\11_14_17_Zoningboard\2017_11_14_ZB_Ascensionofourlordgreek
orthodoxchurch_Danielwright_SU.Doc 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
Zoning Board  

November 14, 2017 
 

Subject:  Ascension of Our Lord Greek Orthodox Church Special Use, 1370 
Riverwoods Road  

Action Requested: Public Hearing regarding a Petition for a Special Use  

Petitioner:  Ascension of Our Lord Greek Orthodox Church 

Originated By/Contact: Tonya Zozulya, Economic Development Coordinator 
Department of Community & Economic Development 

Advisory Board Review: Zoning Board 

 
Background: 

 Ascension of Our Lord Greek Orthodox Church seeks a temporary Special Use to hold 
religious services, programs and classes on the Daniel Wright Junior High School property 
at 1370 Riverwoods Road (see attached map). The 
application is supported by Lincolnshire-Prairie View 
School District 103, owner of the subject property.  

 The underlying zoning of the property is R1 Single 
Family Residential. Church uses are permitted by 
Special Use. 

 The church is in the process of building an addition 
to their existing structure at 1207 Riverwoods Road. 
In the interim, the church seeks a temporary facility 
for program and services.  

 Willow Creek Church received a similar Special Use 
for the Regal Cinemas in 2015.  

 On October 23, 2017, the Village Board reviewed 
the Special Use request, and referred it to the Zoning Board for a public hearing. 

 
Request Summary: 

 As indicated in the attached cover letter, church expects to use the school property for 12-14 
months during the construction of their addition. 

 The church proposes to lease the school cafeteria for Sunday and Holiday services and 
religious school.  

 Regular Sunday services and programs for adults and children, for up to 250 people, will be 
scheduled from 8:30 a.m. until 12:30 p.m. Additionally, the church would like to operate 
Greek language school for up to 55 students on Tuesday evenings during the school year, 
from 5:45 p.m. until 7 p.m.  

 The church indicated they will not require overflow parking and traffic control measures for   
religious Holidays (see the attached petitioner’s presentation packet for a complete list). 
Easter services will not be held at the school.  

 There are 200 parking spaces on the school property which are sufficient to accommodate 
the church’s services given parishioners from within the same family typically ride together. 

 Given the church’s timeframe of 12-14 months to complete the construction of their addition 
and possible construction delays, staff believes a Special Use should be considered which 
provides for a two-year expiration.  



 

Agenda Item 

   3.1, ZB 

 

V:\Property_File\RIVWO-
RD\1370\PLANNING\Ourlordgreekorthodoxchurch_Specialuse\11_14_17_Zoningboard\2017_11_14_ZB_Ascensionofourlordgreek
orthodoxchurch_Danielwright_SU.Doc 

 The church is not requesting permanent signage for this location. They would have the 
ability to use temporary and directional signs, with a Village permit, for special events.   

 The petitioner submitted the attached responses to the Findings of Fact for Special Use for 
consideration by the Zoning Board. The Zoning Board must find each standard has been 
satisfactorily addressed in order to provide a positive recommendation regarding the Special 
Use.  

 A notice of the public hearing was published in the October 27, 2017 edition of the Daily 
Herald. The petitioner also provided the required notice to property owners within a 250’ 
radius of the school property.  

 
Recommendation:  
Staff recommends approval of the Special Use with the following conditions:  
 

1. The church’s Special Use Permit at 1370 Riverwoods Road shall be temporary and 
expire two years from the effective date of this Ordinance or forty five days from the 
issuance of a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy for the church’s permanent facility at 
1207 Riverwoods Road, whichever occurs first.  

2. The church’s assembly use shall be limited to Sundays, religious holidays, and 
Tuesdays only. 

3. The church’s assembly use activities on Sundays shall be limited to the hours of 8:00 
a.m. to 1:00 p.m.  

4. The church’s assembly use activities for the religious holidays shall be limited to the 
hours described in the petitioner’s presentation packet.  

5. The church’s assembly use activities on Tuesdays shall be limited to the hours of 5:30 
p.m. to 7:30 p.m.   

Motion:  
Having made findings based on facts covered in a Public Hearing held on November 14, 2017, 
the Zoning Board recommends approval to the Village Board of a Special Use to allow for 
temporary operations of Ascension of Our Lord Greek Orthodox Church on the Daniel Wright 
Junior High School property located at 1370 Riverwoods Road, subject to staff’s 
recommendations in the November 14, 2017 staff memorandum, and further subject to. . . . . 

{Insert any additional conditions or modification desired by the Zoning Board} 
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 

 Location map, prepared by MGP GIS Consortium.  
 Presentation Packet, prepared by Michael Firsel of Firsel Ross Attorneys at Law, on behalf 

of the petitioner, dated November 6, 2017. 
 

Meeting History 

Village Board Evaluation (COW): October 23, 2017 

Zoning Board (current):  November 14, 2017 

 



!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

208

43
8

209

40
3

408

212

43
7

406

414
409

40
1

216

41
7

412

407

214

313

206

40
2

213

418

40
4

13
70

342

410
214

419

202

311

349

211

309

211

41
5

212

215

40
5

324

363

315

203
213

317

207

301

204

31
8

333325

33
6

310

210

209

40
0

201
205

302

341

330

355

217215

LAKE
COUNTY
FOREST

PRESERVE

RIVERW OODS
RD

FARRINGTON DR

BRAMPTO
NCT

BRAMPTON LN

NORTHAMPTON LN

Daniel Wright
Junior High

School

R2A

R2

R1

DEDICATED

DEDICATEDDEDICATED

DEDICATED

Legend
Zoning Districts

!

! ! !! Subject Location
Building
Parcel Boundary
Village Boundary

Community & Economic Development

Daniel Wright Junior High School
1370 Riverwoods Rd

± LocationMap_Landscape_20170512
JVD, 10/17/2017

1 inch = 236 feet













• ~.. ;/
/,. •_/

- .-

I :~

•5<
CD

0
0

(n

U-

- S

Daniel Wright Junior High SchOØ1~

I

‘S

0

j.’
~ 4 __ ~ :. ~

• ~.f:- ‘~.

~/

•Google Earth

S ~_.• ~
•..-~ .•..•~.

5-I
4. /

.

/
/

Leger~d

~ 1-WO ~é oods Rd
~.DaniéI~WrightJr l~1ig School

I..

1370 Ri

••~/“~‘flhlJi~

A
N

400 ft

• //

/

‘/

/ ,~

‘S

•5•~_

—I

1’,

2017 Goc~j~



21

II.
‘1

Daniel Wright Junior High School I
1370 Riverwoods Road 217 216

Liucoinshire, IL 60069 CSc4y~QZ ~ S.Y1
218 215

M CJ~SSroc~w~S
134 ~ ~ 23.9 214 ~ (,..j.x.j~.Qzl<(9 ~—

~ K
— ~‘‘~213

• X.~eker 136 223
32 (Gzee.gi Gym) (White Gym) ~

226 127 _____

là 129 133. Girl

~ .. -~

-*- -~ ‘oom
x.. -~ .~ 4.~) 13

‘V C) 2 0 209 206 207

j) ~ ~ I l-•’~ ‘I~ U? 1r6 S~a e

125 ~ 124 1.23 ~ - t’lOL c~J-(kr
.~ 11.9 . 14

MciOrj2 ~,
US •. ~ s 202 203

~ Ii
i~I.. I’ Q

IZIE i~iia... G~i~ 00 ~OO~ 2 .1 1JJ.~Ir1 PII~~~

bOA t

Q Lgir

110 111 112 c” •~ - -

6~c~ 3.13.. 1 o~J ).
P~ser ~

~ 32 •~ Off ic

5.~ej~z~ ~ 1~B 083 105 104 ~ S ~ F
109. %) &T’C ‘~ 108 6m~(tk S~etrr~

1ô7 106 103~ 1b2
~kc~

3.060• ~ntrauce
._1 a En1Tw’C.e~

L.CAQERS iN ~~ARNINQ
~.kcqb$~~I,PCIfPAtIIIC ~ICU

O,~1~.Ct

In T


